ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 22, 2007
1:34 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON

Represent ati
Represent at i
Represent at i
Representati
Represent at i
Represent at i
Representati

ve Kyl e Johansen, Chair

ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
ve Anna Faircl ough

ve Crai g Johnson

ve Vic Kohring

ve M ke Doogan

ve Whodi e Sal non

SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON

Senat or Al bert Kookesh, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senat or Donny O son

Senator Bill

W el echowski

Senator Gary W/ ken

VEMBERS ABSENT

HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON

Al'l nenbers

present

SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON

Al menbers

pr esent

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

Confirmati on

Hearing: Leo von Scheben for the Departnent

Transportation and Public Facilities

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

of

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -1- March 22, 2007



W TNESS REG STER

Leo von Scheben, Comm ssi oner designee

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questions

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R KYLE JOHANSEN called the joint neeting of the House and
Senate Transportation Standing Comrittees to order at 1:34:44
PM Present at the call to order were Representatives Neuman,
Fai r cl ough, Johnson, Kohri ng, Sal non, Doogan, and Chair
Johansen, and Senators Cowdery, O son, Welechowski, WIken, and
Chai r Kookesh.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG LEO VON SCHEBEN

1: 35: 22 PM

LEO VON SCHEBEN, Comnm ssioner designee for the Departnment of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF), related his schoo

and work history, including his history as founder of the USKH
architectural and engineering firm in Anchorage, and expl ained

how his private sector experience wll be helpful wth the
challenges facing the DOIPF at this nonment. He said that
Gover nor Palin nomnated him based on his skills in

communi cati on, honestly, and budget and schedul i ng.

He then further explained his relationship with USKH which
provi des architectural and |and surveying services; he retired
fromthe conpany in 2004. The conpany does a lot of work for the
state of Alaska, the US governnent, and various municipalities
in the private sector. He will recuse hinself from any DOTPF
matters involving USKH so as to avoid a conflict of interest
with his past work experience. He considers hinself a data-
dri ven manager, and his business philosophy focuses on custoner
satisfaction, enployee satisfaction, quality of product, and
noney nmanagenent .

He explained that his vision for the DOTPF is to see efficient
pl anni ng, designing, and construction of the projects that neet
the needs of Al aska's econony and its people. He agrees with the
m ssion statement of the DOIPF, which is to provide for the
movenent of people, goods, and state services.

1:41: 20 PM

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 2- March 22, 2007



He said that he wants to involve the private sector nodel in the
DOTPF, wusing consultants to fine-tune the state system and
working with the marine and aviation advisory boards. He also
wants to work on building roads, highways, ports, and airports.
Also, the infrastructure of the future gas pipeline needs to be
exam ned, and architects, engineers, and surveyors AES need to
be hired to make up for staff retiring and | eaving the DOTPF.

He said that in the interest of comunications, a series of
DOTPF neetings should be held throughout the state. He's
particularly excited about the Alaska Railroad, and he | ooks
forward to a fresh look at the Marine H ghway System the aging
infrastructure needs to be examned, and he 1is currently
preparing a plan to present to the governor. Also, many public
facilities across the state are aging and need to be repl aced.

He also plans on looking for ways to nove away from federal
fundi ng dependency, and wll be working with the governor on
t his.

1:45: 53 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if there will be any need to reassess
any major DOTPF projects, |ike the Knik Arm Bridge, Gavina
Bridge, or the Juneau access road, due to a future lack of
federal funds.

MR. VON SHEBEN said that the Gravina Bridge cost is very high,
and he doesn't see available funding comng any tinme soon. The
Knik Bridge has a private/public partnership in place that may
ultimately be able to provide financing. The Juneau road project
is tied to the Marine H ghway System so at this tinme there
won't be re-prioritization for that project.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI commented that the admnistration issued a
contract for a gravel road for the Gavina project in Decenber,
and asked if that project will be conpl et ed.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that the noney for the road is earnarked
so it will be funded no matter what. The road job is supported
by the people of Ketchikan and opens up new areas of l|and for
devel opnent .

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said that there's a geotechnical study out

that shows a significant underestimte of the cost of the Juneau
road project, and asked for M. von Scheben’'s comments.

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 3- March 22, 2007



MR. VON SCHEBEN said that he's unfamliar with that study but
he'll look into it.

CHAI R JOHANSEN asked that if M. von Scheben is confortable with
the fiscal estimate for the project.

MR. VON SCHEBEN said that he is confortable with the estinmate,
but he doesn’t know where the funds will conme from

1:49: 52 PM

SENATOR W LKEN thanked M. von Scheben for his wllingness to
serve the state, and asked about the |lack of design engineers in
t he public sector.

MR. VON SCHEBEN said that the matter is a war for talent, and
that engineers just aren’'t as available as before; new talent
from outside of state is needed. The DOIPF could becone
sonething of a training ground for future engineers who m ght
| eave the departnent, and hopefully sone will end up staying.

SENATOR WLKEN comented that sonme people are afraid of
privatization influence in the DOTPF and others welcone it, and
he asked for M. von Scheben’s comments.

MR. VON SCHEBEN restated his work philosophy, and said that he
wants to see good noney managenent and efficiency, which may
i nvolve help fromthe private sector.

SENATOR W LKEN commented that there’s a lot of rural airport
projects comng up this year, and he asked for thoughts on how
t hese should be funded and where the state is in the process of
renodel i ng the Anchorage airport.

MR. VON SCHEBEN said that the renpdel and the expansion of the A
and B concourses of the Ted Stevens International Airport is
going well, and the contractor has been working with the owner
to see how to best proceed; hopefully there won't be a whole | ot
of surprises in the project. As for rural airports, they are
vital to people involved in general aviation; they re expensive,
but they're very inportant for the people who need them

1: 56: 30 PM

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -4- March 22, 2007



SENATOR W LKEN said that there will be lots of fisherman headed
to Chitna soon, and asked for the state of the O Brian OCreek
bri dge.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that the rebuilding project for the
bridge, lost to a flood, has run into difficulties wth the
| ocal Native corporation. ldeally a bridge and a boat ranmp wll
both be built.

SENATOR W LKEN comented that he’d be willing to help with the
negoti ati on process.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that the DOTPF woul d appreciate help in
working with the Native corporation.

1: 58: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN comented that he hoped M. von Scheben
would work with the nenbers of the legislature to form a plan
for the future of the DOIPF. He said that there are no waste-
sites along sonme road in Northern Alaska, and said that he's
been working wth soil and water conservation districts
regardi ng highway cleanup. He then asked how a program for in-
house training for engineers in the DOTPF coul d be done.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that the key to this is talking sone
retirement-age DOIPF staff into staying on to train and nentor
new younger staff.

2:01: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if M. von Scheben woul d consider an
organi zed i n-house training programfor the DOT.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that he would, because young engi neers,
architects, and surveyors need to | earn from experience.

2:01: 53 PM

SENATOR OLSON asked for comrent on the person hired to manage
t he Al aska Marine H ghway System ( AVHS)

MR. VON SCHEBEN said that M. Dennis Hardy, Deputy Conm ssioner
for the AWHS, is a professional engineer working for the Arny
Corps of Engineers, who's coming to work as a technical rather
than marine expert. He has extensive experience dealing with the
public, and no preconceived notions about the DOTPF system

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 5- March 22, 2007



2:04: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked for comment on M. von Scheben’s
managenent skills and how he'll be comunicating with his staff
in so many different |ocations.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that he has experience working with a
corporation of 3,500 enployees, and he has already visited with
many people who he knows from the private sector. He plans to
communi cate every nonth with various staff around the state, and
he thinks that the right style is to |ead by exanple, and face-
t o-face communi cation is best.

REPRESENTATI VE FAlI RCLOUGH asked for comment on recruitnment and
retention of staff.

MR. VON SCHEBEN said that recruitnent will be difficult, but
exciting work wll be the biggest factor in attracting new
staff. Good salaries and benefits are inportant, but interesting
and stinmulating jobs are the nobst inportant elenent. Wen the
pi peline starts up it wll be a strain on all sectors.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said that sone |egislators represent
|large parts of the state population, and asked how M. von
Scheben sees his role in working with lots of different bodies.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that it may be difficult to sort out
everyone who he needs to work with, and that comrunication is
inmportant. Safety and benefit to the state are his priorities

and he’'s confident that his great staff and teammrk wll make
for effective work.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH sai d that she appreciated his answers.
2:11:10 PM

CHAIR JOHANSEN asked for comment on shipping yards and dry
docking in his district.

MR. VON SCHEBEN explained how he sits on various boards that
deal wth these issues, and the subject in question is one of
the biggest issues. He then listed the various steps that need
to be taken to finish up with the shipyard project, including a
menor andum of agreenent wll tie up the relationship between the
Al aska Industrial Devel opnent & Export Authority (AlDEA) board
and t he DOTPF.

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 6- March 22, 2007



2:13: 54 PM

CHAI R KOOKESH asked if the lack of a marine background wll
hi nder M. von Scheben’s efforts in that sector.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that he's going to try to understand the
system by going out in the field, and taking into account
people's different needs; one doesn't necessarily need to be a
marine expert to understand the econom cal aspect of the AMHS.
He has a southeast Al aska transportation plan that wll help
kick off efforts on the system

CHAIR KOOKESH said that riding the ferry doesn't make anyone an
expert, and he hopes M. von Scheben will nmake nore effort than
t hat .

He then asked what kind of relationship M. von Scheben plans on
having with the Marine Advisory Board.

MR. VON SCHEBEN said that he hopes to rely on elenents of the
private sector |ike the board.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said that he hopes that M. von Scheben
will consider the effects of working with the private sector
because there have been such projects that have ended up being
extrenely costly to the state.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that he won't be nmaking bold noves
wi t hout much planning and a good understanding of any projects
in question. He then related an exanple of inproper private
sect or worKk.

CHAI R KOOKSEH asked what M. von Scheben intends to change about
scheduling for the Marine H ghway System

2:19:27 PM

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that he hasn't thought nuch about
scheduling yet but that he will get back to the commttee.

CHAI R JOHANSEN asked for comment on a situation in Juneau where
noney was spent on a project that hadn’t been approved yet.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that the issue is question was poor
judgment, but that it was an honest attenpt to save nobney on

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -7- March 22, 2007



materials. He promsed that he would never repeat such a
situation.

2:21:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON said that the previous admnistration
tried to cut down on mai ntenance funding for Northern highways,
when it should have been increased. The current admnistration
shoul d not nake the sane m st ake.

MR. VON SCHEBEN replied that he's not famliar with the cuts but
he will informhinmself on the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON comrented that he hopes M. von Scheben
will get back to himon the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said that he hopes to see ships built by
the DOTPF in the com ng years.

2:23:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH made a notion to nove M. von
Scheben’s nomination forward for recommendation w th unani nous
consent. There being no objection, the notion carried.

CHAI R KOOKESH announced that the committee would be forwarding
the recommendation to a joint session for consideration.

SENATOR OLSON nmade a nmotion to nmove M. von Scheben’s nom nation
forward for recomendation w th unaninmous consent. There being
no objection, the notion carried.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Chai r Johansen adjourned the neeting at 2:24:43 PM

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 8- March 22, 2007



